
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE  
               SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

                                                 Tuesday, October 8, 2024 
        Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School             

    6:30 p.m. 
 
Videoconferencing: meet.google.com/dhu-mwqw-ssk 
Audio: +1 402-772-0187 PIN: 331 634 578# 
 
All videoconferencing options may be subject to modifications. Please check www.sau63.org for the latest information. 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER-Dennis Golding-Chair  
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. STUDENT/STAFF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
IV. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 

 
V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Superintendent’s Report   

ii. Student’s School Board Report 
iii. Principals’ Reports 
iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report/Data Presentation 
v. WLCTA Report  

 
VI. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 

a. FY 2025-2026 
i. Prior Follow Up 

ii. First Draft FY 26 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda.  In the interest of preserving 
individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments (including complaints) 
regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent in accord with the 
processes set forth in School Board Policies KE, KEB and BEDH.   
 

VIII. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 
 

IX. NHSBA RESOLUTIONS 
 

X. POLICIES 
a. 2nd Read JLDBB-Suicide Prevention and Response 
b. Emergency Authorization-EEAG-Use of Private Vehicles to Transport 

Students 
 

XI. ACTION ITEMS 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

XII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
i. Facilities Committee 

 



 
XIII. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  

a. FYI-New Hire-Nichole Vallera-Food Services-WLC 
b. Resignation-Tammy Smith-Food Services-WLC 
 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

XV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS   
 

XVI. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (C)   

i. Student Matter 
 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT  
 

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting-October 29, 6:30 PM at FRES-Library 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



WLC Student School Board Report  
October 8, 2024 
Hannah Hamilton; High School Representative 
Andie White; Middle School Representative 
 

 
 High School: 

 
Career and Construction Field Trip: 
The High school students had the opportunity to attend the Career and construction field trip on 
September 27th. Many students had an amazing experience, and were glad they were given this 
opportunity.  
 
College Fair at SNHU: 
High School students had the opportunity to attend the college fair at SNHU on September 24th. 
It was very helpful to all of the students that were looking to attend college after high school.  
 
Fall Sports: 
We have had a fantastic fall sports season. We are so proud of all of our student athletes! 
 
Looking forward to: 

- The Homecoming dance for students in grades 9-12 will be held on October 19th 
 
 

 
Middle School: 

 
The school year is off to a great start. Interactions in the classrooms and hallways have been 
good and kind. At this time, I don't have any concerns for middle school.  



WLC School Board Report 
October 8, 2024 
Submitted by:  Tom Ronning, Principal 
     Katie Gosselin, Assistant Principal 
 
School Board - Student Representative Addition 
I would like to introduce our Middle School Representative Miss Andie White, an 8th grader.  
Andie will be joining Hannah to share information with you throughout the school year. We look 
forward to them including a firsthand view of school life, which can be different from what 
teachers and administrators see.  When discussing the student representative position with 
Andie, she shared that she has a desire to let you know how daily decisions affect the students. 
 
Warrior Winner Cards 
WLC is continuing to send Warrior Winner cards home to highlight student achievements, good 
behaviors and academic efforts. We believe this is important to strengthen school-home 
connections, boost student confidence, and foster a positive school environment. By 
recognizing students publicly, we believe it will encourage continued success and help parents 
stay engaged in their child’s academic growth and accomplishments.  During the month of 
September, WLC sent 150 cards home. 
 
Course Syllabi 
During the month of September,  Katie and Tom reviewed the course syllabus for all current 
classes. The process to place them on the school’s website has begun. By doing so, our school 
will ensure easy access for students and parents, promote transparency, and enhance 
communication. We believe this location may help students stay knowledgeable about what the 
course will cover and allow parents to support their child’s learning. Each syllabus includes an 
outline of the course, expectations, objectives and resources. 
 
New England Association of Schools and Colleges (NEASC) 
We recently received a letter referencing the recent WLC report filed with the commission.  The 
letter is attached. 
 
Athletics: 
There is a statewide bus driver shortage. WLC is not immune. Information was sent home last 
week to share with parents the many hours being dedicated to this issue. Open gym has started 
for girls in grades 6 -12 who would like to play some basketball. This event is open to all female 
students.  Mondays and Thursdays from 6-7pm in the WLC gym. 
 
Important Upcoming Dates: 

● October 4th - Student of the Month awards 
● October 11th Early Release  
● October 14th No School 
● October 16th Fall Music Showcase at 6pm. Come see our talented students 
● October 16th is UNITY Day 



○ On this day we will wear orange to send a visible message of building 
commUNITY through kindness, acceptance, and inclusion to prevent 
inappropriate behavior toward others. 

● October 16th PSAT NMSQT assessment required for all juniors 
● October 17th 5:30 to 6:30pm Apply NH Event for parents and grades 11 and 12 students  

in the counseling office 
○ Financial Aid 101 for parents and grade 11 and 112 students (6:30-7:30) in the 

counseling office 
● October 19th Homecoming Dance from 6-9pm at WLC open to students in grades 9-12 
● October 25th Middle School dance from 3-6pm and is open to students in grades 6-8 
● October 25th Quarter 1 ends.  This is the date grades close for all students in grades 6-

12, Middle School students will begin their new UAs on Monday, October 28. 
● October 28th begins Red Ribbon Week  

 
Homework Club meets every Monday and Thursday from 2:45-3:45. Encourage your child to 
stay for assistance with their work. 
 

Continued 
Discipline - next page 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



High School Discipline Referrals: 
● For the months of August/September, there were 7 log entries that required administration’s 

attention. This is a decrease of 20 from last year at this time. 
● These log entries represent 5 students out of 150 students, which makes up 3.33% of the student 

population.  
 

Category Aug/2023 Aug/Sept 2024 

Total Log Entries 27 7 

Detentions 12 1 

In School Suspension 2 2 

Out of School Suspension 5 0 

Restorative Practice 8 3 

Other (ie- suspension from 
athletics, bus suspension, etc) 

0 1 

 
 
Middle School Discipline Referrals: 

● For the months of August/September, there were 18 log entries that required administration’s 
attention. This is a decrease of 1 from last year at this same time. 

● These log entries represent 9 students out of 131 students, which makes up 6.8% of the student 
population.  

 

Category Aug/Sept 2023 Aug/Sept 2024 

Total Log Entries 19 18 

Detentions 7 7 

In School Suspension 2 7 

Out of School Suspension 0 2 

Restorative Practice 8 1 

Other (ie- suspension from 
athletics, bus suspension, etc) 

2 0 

 
 
 



 

NEW ENGLAND ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES 
Commission on Public Schools 

Director for Accreditation and School Improvement 
ALYSON M. GEARY 

781-425-7736 | ageary@neasc.org 

Associate Directors for Accreditation and School Improvement: 
CARL R. JOHNSON 

781-425-7718 
cjohnson@neasc.org  

FRANCIS T. KENNEDY 
781-425-7749 

fkennedy@neasc.org 

KATHLEEN A. MONTAGANO 
781-425-7760 

kmontagano@neasc.org 

BRUCE R. SIEVERS 
781-425-7716 

bsievers@neasc.org 
 
 
September 25, 2024 
 
 
Thomas H. Ronning 
Principal 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative Middle School/High School 
57 School Road 
Wilton, NH 03086 
 
Dear Mr. Ronning: 
 
The Commission on Public Schools, at its June 24, 2024 meeting, reviewed the Three-Year Report 
of Progress and Planning of Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative Middle School/High School and 
voted to award the school continued Accreditation in the New England Association of Schools and 
Colleges.  
 
The Commission would like to commend the following:  
 

- the focused professional development on using data to identify student weaknesses 
to inform curriculum development and implementation 

- the collaboration by teachers to identify and address gaps in student learning, 
enhancing the overall educational experience and ensuring that all students can 
achieve the student learning expectations (SLEs) 

- the grading of assignments based on the relevant student learning objectives (SLOs) 
demonstrated  

- the ongoing work to write the curriculum across all departments  
- the assessments based on students’ ability to engage in inquiry, problem solving, and 

higher order thinking  
- the required community service  
- the active involvement in community outreach programs, such as the garden program 

and art shows 
- the routine meetings to discuss concerns regarding individual students to provide 

consistent support and student well-being 
- the student achievements that are regularly celebrated through awards, student of the 

month assemblies, and the distribution of Warrior cards 
- the emergency kits available in all classrooms, ensuring that the school is prepared 

for various emergency situations 
- the regular professional development for teachers and school assemblies to promote 

safety awareness among staff and students 
  

mailto:fkennedy@neasc.org
mailto:kmontagano@neasc.org


Thomas H. Ronning 
September 25, 2024 
Page Two 
 
 

- the progress made in ensuring that the school takes collective responsibility for the 
intellectual, physical, social, and emotional well-being of every student 

- the student-led conferences that enhance communication with parents 
 
The Commission requests the school submit a Special Progress Report due May 1, 2025 that 
provides a detailed update on Foundational Element 2.2a, writing the curriculum in a consistent 
format that includes units of study with guiding/essential questions, concepts, content, and skills, 
instructional strategies, and incorporates the vision of the graduate for all courses in all departments. 
  
The school will also submit a Six-Year Report of Progress and Planning, due February 1, 2027.  
The preparation of the Six-Year Report of Progress and Planning can be found on the website at 
https://www.neasc.org/resources-schools-public in the section marked Six-Year Report of Progress 
and Planning.  In that report, the school will report any changes to the ratings of the Foundational 
Elements, progress on the current Priority Areas for Growth, future Priority Areas for Growth, 
changes in the 4Cs, progress toward the additional recommendations listed in the Decennial 
Accreditation Report.  Also, the school will submit a revised school growth/improvement plan. 
 
Priority Areas for Growth should be in the mid to final stages of implementation when the school 
submits its Six-Year Report of Progress and Planning.  Inadequate progress towards completion of 
the Priority Areas for Growth or meeting the Foundational Elements could result in a request for 
additional Progress Reports or a change in the school’s accreditation status.  
  
The Commission requests that it be kept apprised of any substantive changes in the school before 
that date.  For your convenience, a copy of the Substantive Change Policy is attached.  Please notify 
the Commission office of any changes in the names of the principal and/or superintendent along 
with their corresponding e-mail addresses by submitting this information electronically to  
cpss-air@neasc.org. 
 
The school's accreditation status will be reviewed when the Commission considers the Special 
Progress report, which should be submitted by the principal via email at cpssreports@neasc.org. 
 
Please contact me if I can be of any assistance.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Kathleen A. Montagano 
 
KAM/mms 
Attachment 
 
cc: Peter Weaver, Superintendent, SAU #63 

Denis Golding, Chairman, Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
Kevin McCaskill, Chair, Commission on Public Schools 

 
 
 

https://www.neasc.org/resources-schools-public
mailto:cpss-air@neasc.org
mailto:cpssreports@neasc.org


 



1 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, 
age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational 

programs, activities or employment practice.  

____________________________________________________________ 

 

FLORENCE RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
LYNDEBOROUGH CENTRAL SCHOOL  

18 Tremont Street 
Wilton, New Hampshire 03086 

(603) 732-9229               
www.sau63.org 

 
Bridgette Fuller, Principal FRES/LCS                                       Samuel Metivier, School Counselor 
Christina Gauthier, Administrative Assistant FRES                         Sherry LeBlanc, Administrative Assistant LCS 

____________________________________________________________ 
 

Principal Report 
October 8, 2024 

 

Back to School Updates 

In addition to academics, the first six weeks of elementary school are dedicated to establishing classroom/building 

norms, introducing routines, and fostering relationships. These essential practices are alive and well in our kindergarten 

through fifth-grade classrooms. Partnering with families is also a critical component of a successful school year. Families 

from FRES and LCS carved time out of their busy schedules to join their students’ teachers during our annual Curriculum 

Night to learn about the curriculum and ask clarifying questions for the year ahead. Thanks to families and teachers for 

making this evening event informative and successful! 

Assessment and Instruction 

iReady testing, beginning-of-the-year (BOY) assessments, and BOY data meetings have been completed at FRES. In the 

coming days, data-driven action plans to target specific skills will be developed. These action plans will be leveraged to 

ensure each student's needs are met during WIN time. The same process will be duplicated at LCS once their BOY data 

collection has been completed. Thank you to Valerie Bemis and Tamara Cargill for facilitating these impactful and highly 

anticipated meetings. 

Professional Growth 

As you know, teaching and learning go hand in hand. This month, I have had the opportunity to visit classrooms to formally 

and informally observe teaching and learning in action. Samantha Dignan and I have teamed up to formally observe all 

certified teachers at FRES and LCS. This process, which begins with a pre-conference, encourages teachers to reflect on 

their current practice, set goals for themselves, and design and execute lessons aligned with evidence-based and data-driven 

practices. 

In addition to observations, all staff at FRES and LCS have the opportunity to engage in professional development related 

to “Reframing Student Behavior.” This neuroscience-based, trauma-informed program developed by the Crisis Prevention 

Institute (CPI) is available on demand. Additionally, micro-learning opportunities will be embedded in staff and meetings 

throughout the year. Click here if you would like to learn more about this new opportunity. 



2 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, 
age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational 

programs, activities or employment practice.  

Behavior Update 

FRES September 2023 Referrals September 2024 Referrals 

Total Log Entries Bus 13 05 

Log Entries for “Major Behavior” School 32 12 

Loss of Privilege  16 1 

Detention 0 7 

In School Suspension  2 2 

Out of School Suspension 1 2 

In September 2023, there were 45 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool 

  ● These log entries represent 11% of students (27 students out of 242) 

● Roll-out of Student Support Center  

In September 2024, there were 17 log entries (Bus and School) recorded in PowerSchool 

 ● These log entries represent 5% of students (12  students out of 212)  

 ● Year 2 of Student Support Center 

 ● Bus 6 monitor hired 

 
IMPORTANT DATES 

October 21, 2024: PTO Meeting, 6-7 p.m., FRES Cafeteria  
October 22, 2024: Whole School Picture, FRES 8:30 a.m. & First Responders visit LCS for Safety Month. 
October 25, 2024: EMS visits LCS for Safety Month & Grades Close 
November 5, 2024: Election day 
November 6 & 7, 2024: Parent-Teacher conferences & Report Cards distributed, 3 pm- 6:50 pm 
November 7, 2024: The PTO-sponsored Tiger Anti-Bullying Assembly: True Blue You @ FRES, plus in-
classroom workshops for grades 4 and 5— LCS will be joining us. 
November 8, 2024: No School, Conference Day 
November 11, 2024: No School, Veterans Day 

 

 
                    



 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Curriculum Coordinator Report October 8, 2024 
 

This has been a very busy start to the school year.  It may be the busiest start that I had since I 
started my tenure as the Curriculum Coordinator.   
 

Professional Learning 
Professional Learning 
This month, there were several opportunities for professional learning in our district.  Katie 
Gosselin and I have continued to develop the Mentor Program.  We held two different meetings 
for the new teachers to attend.  The first meeting was an optional email, where teachers could 
come, ask questions, and pose thoughts to anyone in attendance.  The second meeting was a 
mandatory meeting where teachers from both WLC and FRES were sent on a “scavenger hunt” in 
their parent/student handbooks, specifically around discipline.  After this hunt, they were given the 
opportunity to pose questions and get answers from the larger group.   
 
An additional opportunity for new teachers at FRES was I held a 3-hour training after school about 
Responsive Classroom.  This was not intended to be an all-encompassing course but a general 
overview of the tenets of Responsive Classroom.  The new teachers were engaged and asked 
wonderful questions during the presentation.  I worked with the new teachers with proactive 
classroom management strategies, including teacher language.   
 
In addition, I attended a few different professional development opportunities.  I attended the New 
Hampshire School Administrators Association “Unconference.”  This was a great opportunity to 
have conversations with other districts about how they are leveraging data to make the best 
decisions for our students.  Additionally, there was a session around all of the legislative updates 
that was very informative.  Another opportunity was a New Hampshire Statewide Assessment 
System (NH SAS) Advisory Committee.  This was something that Laura Bujak (Middle School 
ELA) and I attended.  We spent two days in Concord reading NH SAS questions and looking for a 
plethora of items, from standard alignment to grammatical errors.  It was some of the best NH SAS 
professional development I have ever had and would strongly recommend any teacher in our 
district attend these opportunities.   
 
 

 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 

              Peter Weaver                                                     Ned Pratt                                                             Kristie LaPlante                
Superintendent of Schools                     Director of Student Support Services             Business Administrator           

  
  

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical thinking and 
responsible citizenship. 



 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual 
orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

Curriculum 
The ELA Committee met several times over the month of September to determine how we will 
move forward with our programming. We are looking to pilot a new ELA program in grades 3-5 at 
FRES and potentially grade 6 at WLC. Staff members from grades 3, 4, and 6 were present for 
these meetings, and many structured literacy programs were reviewed. We hope to have a decision 
in the next few weeks.   
 

Instruction 
I know it is only September, but classroom observations have already begun! Something that has 
always been difficult in education is how infrequently teachers have 1:1 time with their building 
leadership to talk about instruction.  Our administrative team has made this a priority both last year 
and this year.  We are holding pre-observation meetings where we have a conversation about what 
students will be learning, how teachers (and students) will know they have successfully learned the 
objective, and what best instructional practices teachers intend to utilize during the observation.  
After the observation, we have conversations about how the observation went, what data the 
teacher collected, whether or not the students successfully learned the objective, etc.  These are 
great conversations and really support each teacher in moving forward.  In September, I had the 
opportunity to observe the three new teachers at FRES and one new teacher at WLC.  Katie  
observed the remaining four new teachers at WLC.   
 

Assessment 
We have almost wrapped up our first round of iReady testing.  Kindergarten will wrap up the week 
of 10/7 with their reading.  FRES has held their data meetings and were gracious enough to host 
some WLC staff so we can ensure that our meetings are aligned across the district.  This was a 
fantastic opportunity, and I want to thank Valarie Bemis and Tammy Cargill for being such 
excellent facilitators and hosts.  Juniors, mark your calendars because our PSAT/NMSQT 
assessment is on October 16th. 

 
FRES 

At FRES, I have continued to support with discipline one day a week.  In addition to the discipline 
support, I am working closely with Special Education and the 504 Coordinators.  We have begun 
weekly meetings to discuss upcoming meetings, plan for student services, review data, and talk 
about best practices for facilitating meetings.   
 

MISC.  
Lastly, this month, I worked in conjunction with the other administrators and vendors to gather 
information and develop budgets for the buildings.  I also developed the Curriculum Coordinator 
budget.   



SAU 63 
Fall 2024 Data 

Presentation



This quote is here to remind us that as we continue this journey of continuous 
improvement, it does not happen overnight.  We are making small steps all the time to 
make improvements for our students, classes, grades, schools, and district.  

“Big things don’t always 
happen with a leap.  Big things 
happen when we take the next 
best step over and over again.”

~Jill M. Siler



This is our Vision of a Graduate.  It’s important to keep this in mind as we review data.  

The WLC Graduate will be an effective 
communicator, a strong collaborator, a 
creative problem solver, a self-directed 

learner, and a responsible citizen.



31 2

Agenda

iReady Math
Current Math Data K-10

iReady Reading 
Current Reading Data 

K-10

When we assess

What the colors mean

iReady Information



iReady Information
When do we assess?

How do we use the data?

What do the colors mean? 

1



Cycle for Continuous Improvement

Instruction

This includes intervention 
and extension.

Create Action Plans

Use data collected to make 
plans for all groups

Collect/Analyze Data

Organize the data into 
tables, charts etc. 

Assess

Pre Assessments, 
screeners, benchmark 
assessments

Student 
Class
Grade
School
District

As we work through this year, our goal is continuous improvement for all.  This starts 
with individual students and goes all the way up to the district as a whole. We are 
working at all levels to improve our outcomes for students.  



iReady Benchmark Testing Windows 

May 2025

iReady spring 
benchmark data is 
collected and 
analyzed.  Teams 
meet to analyze 
data and develop 
plans for students. 

September 2024

iReady fall 
benchmark data is 
collected.  Teams 
meet to analyze 
data and develop 
plans for students.  

January 2025

iReady winter 
benchmark data is 
collected and 
analyzed. Teams 
meet to analyze 
data and develop 
plans for students.  

We take our iReady benchmark assessment three times a year.  iReady recommends 
that Kindergarten students do not take their assessments until 4-6 weeks into school.  
Their data will not be in the presentation this time, but I will have their fall data in the 
Winter presentation.  



iReady Scale

Dark Red

Deep red 
indicates 
students are 
3 or more 
years below 
grade level.

Red 

Red 
indicates 
students 
are 2 years 
below grade 
level.

Yellow

Yellow 
indicates 
students 
are 1 year 
below 
grade level.  

Dark Green

Dark green 
indicates 
students 
are 
mid-grade 
level or 
above.

Green

Light 
green 
indicates 
students 
are early 
on grade 
level.

Just to review what each of our colors means.  I know it has been a while, so to orient 
you to the colors, yellow is where most students should be scoring at this point in the 
year because they have not had the opportunity to access grade-level 
curriculum/content yet.  



iReady Math
Overview of where we are now

2



This is where our high school students are scoring in math right now.  These numbers 
are the percentage of students in each band.  *******Later, we will review how these 
students are doing relative to their performance last year.  As you can see our 9th 
grade has a pretty diverse group of scores.  



This graph has a lot of information on it, so I want to take a moment to orient you to 
what you are looking at.  There are three sets of bars.  The first set is 6th grade, 
second set is 6th grade, and the final set is 8th grade. The scores for our students are 
the first bar for each grade.  So as you can see 26% of our students are on or above 
grade level in 6th grade math.  For this point in the year, that means they are ahead of 
where they should be.  40% of our student are scoring in the yellow which means 
those students are ready for grade-level instruction and are exactly where they need 
to be.  

In the middle school we are scoring fairly consistently with the state and the nation, if 
not slightly better at this point in the year.  



This graph is the same as the previous one for grades 2-5.  Reminder, students who 
are in the yellow are exactly where they should be at this point in the year.  They are 
showing that they are ready for grade-level instruction.  

In grades 2-5, we are scoring fairly consistently above the state and the nation. 



This graph is our Kindergarten and grade 1 students.  You can see we still have more 
students on, above, or ready to receive grade-level instruction than both the state and 
the nation.  The Kindergarten is missing because they have not completed their 
testing as of 10/1.  This may be updated prior to the meeting on 10/8 if all students 
complete their testing.  



iReady Reading
Overview of where we are now

3



This is where our high school students are scoring in reading right now. Our reading 
scores are showing that 75% of our 9th grade students are on, above, or ready to 
receive grade-level instruction in reading.  56% of our students in 10th grade are on, 
above, or ready to receive grade-level instruction in reading.  



This graph mirrors the middle school math graph where the first column is our 
students, the second column is the Year to Date New Hampshire information, and the 
last column is the Year to Date National information for each grade-level.  ******As you 
can see again, we are outperforming the state, and nation for our reading scores.  



Almost across the board, more students at FRES are on, above, or ready for 
grade-level instruction.  Additionally, we are scoring fairly consistently at or above the 
state and the nation.  



Again, a higher percentage of our 1 student are on, above, or ready for grade-level 
instruction.  



1 2

BONUS DATA 

iReady Math
Fall ‘22 Scores to 

Fall ‘24 Scores 

Fall ‘22 Scores to 

Fall ‘24 Scores 

iReady Math 



iReady Math
Historical Data

1



This graph is the current sophomores. You can see that over time, this group is 
increasing the percentage of students falling within the on grade-level range.  



This graph is the current freshman. Given that this year is a transition year for 
students, this jump in students on or above grade level is great to see.  



This graph is the current 8th grade. You can see we are increasing the percentage 
of students in the on and above grade level bands from last fall. 



This graph is the current 7th grade. 



This graph is the current 6th grade.  Again with transitions, there is always an 
adjustment period for students.  This group of students has remained fairly consistent 
given that they are moving buildings. 



This graph is the current 5th grade. You can see this group has consistently 
improved over the last three years.  



These are our current 4th grade students. 



This graph is the current 3rd grade students.  We are simultaneously decreasing 
the percentage of students in the two or more grade levels below and increasing the 
percentage of students in the on or above grade-level.  



This graph is the current 2nd grade. 



iReady Reading
Historical Data

2



This graph is the current sophomores. You can see the students in 2 or more 
grade-levels and below has decreased from last fall to this fall.  



This graph is the current freshman. You can see we are moving students from 2 or 
more grade-levels below to one grade level below over the years. 



This graph is our current 8th grade. 



This graph is our current 7th grade. 



This graph is our current 6th grade.  You can see again we are shrinking our 
percentage of students in the two or more grade-levels below and increasing the 
percentage of students in the on or above grade level.  



This graph is our current 5th grade.  This group of students has decreased the 
percentage of students in the 3 or more grade levels below by 16%.  



This graph is our current 4th grade.  From last year, the percentage of students in the 
2 and 3 or more grade levels below has decreased by 13%.  



This graph is our current 3rd grade.  The percentage of students who are in the on or 
above grade level range has increased from 21% to 48% from Fall of ‘23 to Fall of 
‘24.  



This graph is our current 2nd grade. 



Questions / 
Comments?



WLCTA Board Report
October 8, 2024

WLC:
● First snapshots were 9/27. Most kids are working hard to meet our rising standards / rigor.
● NHS Updates
○ Fall applications due October 25th
■ GPA requirement - 3.7 or above
○ Trick or Can October 26th
○ Providing babysitting at WLC for Parent-Teacher Conferences in the cafe
● Field Trip Updates:
○ Washington DC trip (May 2025)
■ Waiting to see how many juniors and seniors sign up– will be opened to the sophomores if we have

the space!
○ UK/France Trip (April 2026)
■ Informational meeting Oct. 8, 2024
■ Hoping to have kids take advantage of this amazing opportunity!
○ Boston Museum of Fine Arts
■ Ms. Hall is in the process of planning a high school art field trip for late October/early November

that will invite 23 high school students to attend.
● WLC Art Dept. Updates:
○ Emily Hall, the WLC art teacher, is concerned that we lost momentum with the growth of the WLC

school garden, and is wondering if anyone in the community would like to head this project as a
volunteer who has the time, resources, and knowledge to do so! She is looking to see if it would be
possible to create a volunteer committee to help with landscaping, and possibly even building an
outdoor classroom in the very near future. Last year we hosted an autumn festival there with our
nonprofit guest, Cornucopia. Although the event was beautiful and well attended by some staff,
school board members and students, not many people in the community showed up. We need a
larger community initiative if this idea is going to become a reality! If you or anyone you know from
the community is interested in helping, please reach out to Emily Hall at e.hall@sau63.org.

○ Ben Scalise from Scalise Family Sheep Farm in Wilton, NH is coming into Emily Hall’s period 4
Drawing class on Monday to pitch a project to my students. They will be creating paintings and
drawings that may be potential images for his soap and salve products!

FRES/LCS:
● First grade worked with their 5th grade buddies to make 20 apple pies. They were able to give

everyone at FRES a taste of their creations! It was a wonderful endeavor of cooperation,
responsibility, and self control. First and fifth graders will continue to do monthly projects together
to give them both a chance to shine.

● Kindergarten is going on a field trip to Windy Hill Orchard on 10/3 to go apple picking.
● FRES is done with the first round of I-ready testing and data days. LCS will be completing their first

round in the next few weeks.
● Parent Teacher Conferences for FRES and LCS will be on November 6th and 7th after school. Watch

for an announcement on Parentsquare with signup links.



   

 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

FY 2025-2026 

 

 

September 10, 2024 JOINT SCHOOL BOARD/BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION –  

Recap of FY24 budget/actual 

Discuss strategy for FY26 budget, establish guidelines for Admin to build 

budget 

October 8, 2024 JOINT SCHOOL BOARD/BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION –  

Superintendent/BA present first draft of FY26 Budget 

October 22, 2024 BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING –  
Technology, Transportation, SAU, Business Office, Food Service 

October 29, 2024 SCHOOL BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION (BC liaison reports out to School Board) 

Discussion of Warrant Article Considerations 

November 5, 2024 BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING –  
LCS, FRES, WLC, Curriculum Coordinator, Special Education 

November 12, 2024 SCHOOL BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION (BC liaison reports out to School Board) 

Finalize Warrant Articles 

November 19, 2024 BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING –  

Facilities Director, CIP discussion/presentation, Revenue, Grants, Warrants 

December 3, 2024 PROBABLE JOINT SCHOOL BOARD/BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION –  
Full Budget review with all budget partners, attempt to wrap up FY26 Budget; 
if not, establish mutual goals & deadlines 
Warrant Articles should be finalized 

December 10, 2024 BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING (if needed) 

 

 

PERIOD FOR FILING FOR ELECTIVE OFFICE (RSA 
671:19;RSA 669:19) 

January 22, 2025 – January 31, 2025 till 5 PM 
 

POST NOTICE OF SCHOOL BOARD BUDGET HEARING (7)  January 30, 2025 (Last Day)  
 

DEADLINE FOR COLLECTIVE BARGAINING ITEMS (RSA 273-
A:1,III) (no expiring CBAs) 

*February 1, 2025 
 

DEADLINE FOR PETITIONED WARRANT ARTICLES (RSA 
197:6) (30) FINAL INPUT PREPARED FOR PUBLIC 
HEARING 

*February 6, 2025 at 3:00 p.m. 
 

WLC BUDGET (25)/BOND & NOTES HEARING (15) (RSA 
32:5,I) 

Thursday, February 6, 2025  7 PM 

 SNOW DATE Friday, February 7, 2025  7 PM 

POST WARRANT & MS-27 (14 DAYS PRIOR) (RSA 197:7; 
RSA 195:13) 

*February 22, 2025 (Last Day)  
 

ANNUAL REPORTS DISTRIBUTED *March 1, 2025 (Last Day) 

WLC DISTRICT MEETING (RSA 197:1) Saturday, March 8, 2025 9 AM      

 SNOW DATE Monday, March 10, 2025  7 PM                      

WLC DISTRICT VOTING (RSA 671:2) Tuesday, March 11, 2025 
 Wilton-8AM-7PM 
 Lyndeborough 10AM-7PM 

                              *Last day by law for school district meeting is March 25, 2025. 

Rev. 2 9/30/24 





































JLDBB - SUICIDE PREVENTION AND RESPONSE 

  Page 1 of 3 

 

Category:  Priority/Required by Law   Related Policies: JLD 

The Wilton School Board is committed to protecting the health, safety and welfare of its students and 
school community. This policy supports federal, state and local efforts to provide education on youth 
suicide awareness and prevention; to establish methods of prevention, intervention, and response to 
suicide or suicide attempt ("postvention"); and to promote access to suicide awareness, prevention 
and postvention resources.  

A. District Suicide Prevention Plan and Biennial Review.  The District shall maintain a 
coordinated written District Suicide Prevention Plan (the "Plan") to include guidelines, protocols 
and procedures with the objectives of prevention, risk assessment, intervention and response to 
youth suicides and suicide attempts.   

1. Specific Requirements for Plan Terms: The District Suicide Prevention Plan shall include 
terms relating to: 

a. Suicide prevention (risk factors, warning signs, protective factors, referrals); 

b. Response to in-or-out-of-school student suicides or suicide attempts (postvention, 
suicide contagion); 

c. Student education regarding safe and healthy choices, coping strategies, recognition 
of risk factors and warning signs of mental disorders and suicide; and help seeking 
strategies; 

d. Training of staff, designated volunteers, and contracted personnel on the issues of 
youth suicide risk factors, warning signs, protective factors, response procedures, 
referrals, post-intervention and resources available within the school and community; 

e. Confidentiality considerations; 

f. Designation of any personnel, in addition to the District Suicide Prevention 
Coordinator and Building Suicide Prevention Liaisons, to act as points of contact 
when students are believed to be at an elevated risk of suicide;  

g. Information regarding state and community resources for referral, crisis intervention, 
and other related information; 

h. Dissemination of the Plan or information about the Plan to students, parents, faculty, 
staff, and school volunteers; 

i. Promotion of cooperative efforts between the District and its schools and community 
suicide prevention program personnel; 

j. Such include such other provisions deemed appropriate to meet the objectives of this 
Policy (e.g., student handbook language, reporting processes, "postvention" 
strategies, memorial parameters, etc.). 



JLDBB - SUICIDE PREVENTION AND RESPONSE 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

2. Biennial Review:  No less than once every two years, the Superintendent, in 
consultation with the District Suicide Prevention Coordinator with input and evidence from 
community health or suicide prevention organizations, and District health and guidance 
personnel, shall update the District Suicide Prevention Plan, and present the same to the 
Board for review.  Such Plan updates shall be submitted to the Board in time for appropriate 
budget consideration. 

B. Suicide Prevention Coordinator and Liaisons. 

1.  District Suicide Prevention Coordinator.   The Superintendent shall appoint a District Suicide 
Prevention Coordinator, who, under the direction of the Superintendent shall be responsible 
for: 

a. developing and maintaining cooperative relationships with and coordination efforts 
between the District and community suicide prevention programs and personnel; 

b. annual updating of (i) State and community crisis or intervention referral intervention 
information, and (ii) names and contact information of Building Suicide Prevention 
Liaisons, for inclusion in student handbooks and on the District's website; 

c. developing - or assisting individual teachers with the development - of age 
appropriate student educational programing, such that all students receive information 
in the importance of safe and healthy choices and coping strategies, recognizing risk 
factors and warning signs of mental disorders and suicide in oneself and others, and 
providing help-seeking strategies for oneself or others, including how to engage 
school resources and refer friends for help; 

d. developing or assisting in the development of the annual staff training required under 
section C of this policy; 

e. Such other duties as referenced in this Policy or as assigned by the Superintendent. 

2.  Building Suicide Prevention Liaison.   The School Counselor or, in his/her absence, the 
building principal, shall be designated as the Building Suicide Prevention Liaison, and shall 
serve as the in building point-of-contact person when a student is believed to be at an 
elevated risk for suicide.  Employees who have reason to believe a student is at risk of 
suicide, or is exhibiting risk factors for suicide, shall report that information to the Building 
Liaison, who shall, immediately or as soon as possible, establish and implement a response 
plan with the District Suicide Prevention Coordinator.  

C. Annual Staff Training.  The Superintendent shall assure that beginning with the 2020-21 school 
year, all school building faculty and staff, designated volunteers, and any other personnel who 
have regular contact with students, including contracted personnel or third-party employees, 
receive at least two hours of training in suicide awareness and prevention.  Such training may 
include such matters as youth suicide risk factors, warning signs, protective factors, intervention, 
response procedures, referrals, and postvention and local resources. 



JLDBB - SUICIDE PREVENTION AND RESPONSE 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

D. Dissemination.  Student handbooks and the District's website will be updated each year with the 
contact information for the Building Suicide Prevention Liaisons, State and community crisis or 
intervention referral intervention resources.  The District Suicide Prevention Plan will be made 
available on the District's, and each school's respective websites. 

E. Student Identification Cards. The 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline shall be labeled on student 
identification cards for grades 6-12and read: "Suicide and Crisis Lifeline: Call 988". Prior to 
the start of each school year, the Superintendent shall certify that the contact information for the 
988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline is accurate and up to date. Note: Beginning August 13, 2024, 
RSA 193-K:1 requires that all new or replacement student identification cards for grades 6-12 
shall also include the telephone number for the National Alliance for Eating Disorders -  866-
662-1235.  

 
 
District Policy History: 

First reading: September 26, 2023, September 24, 2024 

Second reading/adopted: October 10, 2023 
District revision history: 

 
Legal References: 

RSA 193-J: Suicide Prevention Education 

RSA 193-J:2-a: Suicide Prevention; Public School Identification Cards 

 

Other Resources: 

The New Hampshire Department of Education's Bureau of Student Wellness, Office of Social and 
Emotional Wellness (OSEW), provides resources and technical assistance to school districts to work 
collaboratively with their community to respond to the needs of students through a multi-tiered 
system of support for behavioral health and wellness. For further information 
see:  www.nhstudentwellness.org 

American Foundation for Suicide Prevention (AFSP) - https://www.afsp.org 

Suicide Prevention Resource Center - http://www.sprc.org 

The National Suicide Prevention Lifeline - https://www.suicidepreventionlifeline.org 

The Trevor Project -  https://www.thetrevorproject.org 

Legal References Disclaimer: These references are not intended to be considered part of this policy, 
nor should they be taken as a comprehensive statement of the legal basis for the Board to enact this 
policy, nor as a complete recitation of related legal authority. Instead, they are provided as additional 
resources for those interested in the subject matter of the policy. 

 

 



 

  

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, September 24, 2024 3 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School 4 

  6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
The videoconferencing link was published several places including on the meeting agenda. 7 
 8 
Present: Dennis Golding, Brianne Lavallee, John Zavgren, Michelle Alley, Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral, Darlene 9 
Anzalone, Geoffrey Allen, Diane Foss, and Jonathan Lavoie 10 
 11 
Superintendent Peter Weaver, Business Administrator Kristie LaPlante, Director Nicholas Buroker, Food Service 12 
Director Megan Nantel, and Clerk Kristina Fowler 13 
 14 

I. CALL TO ORDER  15 
Chairman Golding called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 16 
 17 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 18 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 19 

 20 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 21 

Superintendent requested to cancel the nonpublic session for this evening.  22 
 23 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to remove the nonpublic session 24 
from the agenda. 25 
 26 
Chairman Golding confirms there was a scheduling conflict and it will possibly move to the next meeting. 27 
 28 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 29 
 30 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 31 
The public comment section of the agenda was read. No one was online and there were no public comments. 32 

 33 
V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 34 

a. Reports 35 
i. Business Administrator’s Report 36 

Ms. LaPlante reported there is not too much to report coming out of the business office budgets are being discussed. 37 
The tennis courts should theoretically be starting in the next week or two. We do have some work that needs to be 38 
done prior at the request of the vendor. She is coordinating a few things with the vendor and anticipates work will 39 
start before the next board meeting. Regarding paving at WLC, some handwork done to reduce slips, trips and falls, 40 
and are waiting for Continental to return to complete the job. She has two FY 24 closeouts that she is requesting the 41 
Board to act on. The first is we have talked extensively about the $100,000 to be transferred from unspent funds into 42 
the Building/Equipment & Roadway Capital Reserve Fund.  She is looking for the Board to confirm the amount 43 
because it is “up to $100,000”, then take a formal vote for the auditors and DRA to confirm the amount and the 44 
transfer was approved by the Board. A question was raised if we have a status on the sinks on the MS bathroom and 45 
art room. Ms. LaPlante confirms these projects are on hold due to timing and being short staffed. It is in the pipeline 46 
still and no date to be completed. Ms. LaPlante confirms the dollar amount the Board had discussed extensively is 47 
$100,000 but has the permission to allocate up to $100,000.  She confirms when asked that there are no specific fixes 48 
that need to be done at this time. A question was raised if the funds are not used can they be returned at the end of the 49 
year. Ms. LaPlante responds it is taking $100,000 from unspent funds and once it goes into the capital reserve fund it 50 
stays in the capital reserve fund until it is expended on a project.   51 
 52 
Mr. Lavoie MOVES the Question and MOTIONS to appropriate $100,000 from the unassigned fund balance into the 53 
capital reserve fund (Building/Equipment & Roadway) as discussed in prior meetings.  54 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 55 



 

  

 56 
Ms. LaPlante has a second request, she believes the Board discussed on June 25 to encumber the funds for the tennis 57 
courts and at that time, the gym windows were in the pipeline to be replaced but did not happen until August. She is 58 
asking the Board to consider formally encumbering FY 24 funds into FY 25. It still meets the intent, it just tighten 59 
things up for the auditors and DRA. Sixty thousand of that is coming from the capital reserve and $4,500 is coming 60 
from the operating budget from last year. 61 
 62 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to encumber $64,500 to legally 63 
carry forward those funds to be spent for the WLC gym windows replacement project in FY 25. 64 
 65 
Ms. LaPlante confirms the project has been completed.  66 
 67 
Voting: all aye; motion carried. 68 
 69 
Ms. LaPlante reported that we have been able to spend all but about $70 in ESSER III. We were able to take care of 70 
more behavior health initiatives to help support our teachers in the classroom and keep our students in the classroom. 71 
We have reported that the boilers were to be installed by September 30 and have been in panic mode behind closed 72 
doors figuring out what is going on. They are not going to be installed by September 30; we are working with the 73 
DOE to get the formal approval to complete the project after September 30. The vendors came in today, started 74 
dismantling the boilers, which are scheduled to be onsite next week. We are not talking an extensive delay but a little 75 
more paperwork we have to do.  76 
 77 
Ms. LaPlante spoke of the meal cost. As part of our National School Lunch Program, we have to certify for the DOE 78 
that the meal price we are charging is fair and equitable and we are not asking our free and or reduced meal 79 
reimbursements to subsidize any of our meal program. We are not asking our paying customers to pay more to 80 
subsidize our free and reduced. Nationwide the USDA is recommending a weighted average per meal of $3.85, 81 
which is an increase of .85 from what we are currently charging. Looking at October 2023 meal prices, it appears 82 
that they would like us to adjust our specific meal price to $3.62. The risk in doing that is we then increase our debt. 83 
We increase what we are carrying because students who can’t afford or who don’t have the financial ability to 84 
sustain a $3 meal certainly do not have the ability to sustain a $3.62 meal. To stay in compliance with the National 85 
School Lunch Program, USDA that says we have to evaluate this every year and consider making market 86 
adjustments, speaking with our partners here in NH, they are recommending we increase our price to just under 2% 87 
to $3.05. She is requesting the Board to make a motion of support for increasing the meal price to $3.05 effective 88 
October 1 to stay in compliance. A brief discussion was had regarding the food service debt and if we are allowed to 89 
use unspent funds at the end of the year to pay off that debt. Ms. LaPlante confirms she has asked the DRA and our 90 
auditors and has not received a clear answer. We talked about this back in April when we were talking about unspent 91 
funds. A question was raised if we know what the typical amount of debt we carry over is. It was confirmed the debt 92 
is from unpaid lunches. Ms. Nantel confirms from last year and up to now, the current debt stands at $40,423.39. We 93 
have 104 active students, which have accumulated a total of $7,512.37, and our active student total debt is 94 
$32,911.01. She does not know how much was carried over year after year but we ended last year with about 95 
$37,000. Already this year we have accumulated roughly $3,000 in debt. A question was raised how we did this fall 96 
getting forms back from parents; it has always been an ongoing issue. The debt is multifaceted, we have families that 97 
would not qualify and are not paying and families that would qualify and are not filling out the paperwork. Ms. 98 
Nantel responded we have a good number of forms coming in and some new ones that she does not recall seeing last 99 
year. She cannot control the number that is turned in she can just continue to educate and inform the families. We 100 
have received the majority of the MS and HS back. The more that do turn them in, the better for our district. It was 101 
noted it is amazing that you can feed a full meal to children on $3.05.That is a very, very low number and it is 102 
wished that legislation would catch up with food prices, food prices are not what they used to be. A school should 103 
not have to go in debt to feed children. Praise was given to Ms. Nantel. A brief discussion was had regarding how 104 
often the forms for free and reduced are going out. Ms. Nantel confirms families do get multiple forms (if have 105 
multiple students) and only needs to fill it out once per year. It was suggested to decrease that for families so that 106 
they only get one form per family. Ms. Nantel confirms a letter was mailed last year for debt collection and we could 107 
put another letter together one per family. We do not do a mass one right now. It may be more beneficial to wait and 108 
not send it home the first day of school when parents are getting multiple other forms but wait and send it out later. It 109 
was noted that the number of kids on that program affects the revenue the district gets from the state. It is beneficial 110 
for the district to have as many people fill out the form as possible and a follow up letter would be helpful for 111 
families, it does not just affect school lunch. Ms. Nantel shared that some families have asked if they would be 112 



 

  

audited for it and does it affect their taxes. She thinks there is some concern from parents who do not want to provide 113 
their information. She confirms that filling it out helps even if you don’t qualify or think you won’t qualify and that 114 
is part of the education. It was suggested to have a workshop or another meeting as it is not fair to the taxpayers that 115 
we are carrying a $40,000 debt for lunches and if a good percentage of those kids are kids that would otherwise go 116 
hungry it is a worthwhile debt and people would likely understand. How do we differentiate from the families who 117 
are just not paying and the families who really need assistance? A brief discussion was had regarding debt collection, 118 
which it is a slippery slope and for those families who are having trouble just keeping the lights on it is not helpful. A 119 
question was raised if we do any type of more compassionate services approach and speak to the parents about the 120 
resources available to them to help differentiate. It was noted that it is something the Board needs to look at to make 121 
sure we are not incurring unnecessary debt for the taxpayers and are servicing the children that are here that need to 122 
be served and how best to do that. Ms. Nantel responds she does not think a form will solve that there are the parents 123 
who need assistance and won’t fill it out and those who don’t know they can fill out to get the assistance. Ms. 124 
LaPlante spoke that the feedback they received back from the Office of Nutrition and the USDA, National School 125 
Lunch focus on feeding the kids a nutritious meal; that would be a very slippery slope to insert Ms. Nantel into trying 126 
to differentiate. She knows the only thing that gets charged or that we are allowed to accrue delinquency for so to 127 
speak is, is a hot meal, they are not allowed to charge ice cream etc. the kids truly are getting a basic meal. It was 128 
suggested rather to send a letter saying you owe us money to make a phone call asking how can we get these forms 129 
done to help or is that too much. The expectation is not that Ms. Nantel is our “welfare director” or anything like that 130 
but it is expected that she collects our debts and also expects us as a community feed the children who need it. Ms. 131 
Nantel spoke of receiving some donations in the past with a specific purpose of paying down student debt but the 132 
issue with those is deciding which debt is valued more. Do we start with the seniors who may not be able to walk 133 
(for graduation) or some may need that more, it is deciding who is worthy of the extra help. Calling them afterward 134 
is a good approach, some will receive it well and others will not. When we did send out debt letters we did ask how 135 
we could help and she had a few parents reach out to ask for a payment plan. The majority of the debt that was paid 136 
was the $10-$20 ones. A question was raised if other students are knowledgeable that a student is receiving free or 137 
reduced lunch. Ms. Nantel confirms no, it is very confidential. It was confirmed the debt just continues to roll over 138 
year to year. A question was raised if there is a limit on the amount of donation we can receive to pay off the debt, 139 
can we just accept money to pay toward the debt. Ms. Nantel does not think so; she believes it is tied to student 140 
accounts vs. overall debt. Ms. LaPlante confirms we have not been in that situation since she has been here but if it 141 
was a blanket donation; we would work with the guidance department to determine who would have the most benefit 142 
and it would be 100% confidential.  Ms. Foss voiced that she knows it is a difficult problem but she would not be in 143 
support of taking a family to court over this, there must be another way. Ms. LaPlante responded that is not on our 144 
list of things to do. Ms. Lavallee commented that it was discussed extensively last year when we redid the policy and 145 
she believes everyone was on the same page that it was not an avenue that we wanted to go down. It was noted that 146 
during COVID the Government was paying for the meals. Ms. Nantel confirms she does not know how long it took 147 
to accrue the $40,000 debt and not sure, if she can find out but will look into it.  148 
 149 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to accept the suggested increase of less than 150 
2% to $3.05 per meal. 151 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 152 
 153 
A question was raised if that cost will cover the cost of lunch or will every single lunch drive us further into debt. 154 
Ms. Nantel responds no, it will cover it.  155 

ii. Director of Technology’s Report 156 
Mr. Buroker reported 262 tickets; fall is the busiest time for them, which was compounded by replacing all of our 157 
printers, implementing ParentSquare and the website’s facelift. Overall, the summer was productive and he 158 
accomplished all of the goals. Regarding Chromebooks we got the majority out on the 2nd day, everyone who had a 159 
form signed received a Chromebook. We are conspiring to get them out earlier next year maybe even before school 160 
starts. Regarding ParentSquare, people seem to like it. We sent out permission slips digitally which was well 161 
received and the inability to lose a form is handy. He gave a shout-out to the intern who handled the lion’s share of 162 
the website facelift. A brief discussion was had about parents getting more than one email or phone call and 163 
questioned if there is a way only send one per household especially if they are in the same school. Mr. Buroker 164 
responded you should only be getting one if it is district wide but he will look into it.  165 
 166 

VI. ELECTION DAY 167 
Chairman Golding reviewed that the Board had a couple of long discussions about this. He attended the Wilton 168 
Selectman’s meeting along with the Superintendent and Ms. Lavallee, it turns out that Ms. Jane Farrell and Mr. Bill 169 



 

  

Keefe decided to hold elections at the Town Hall. Essentially, it all works out. The Superintendent spoke of the work 170 
we did trying to build a partnership and a win, win solution and wanting that to be reflected in the minutes. He 171 
passed out the email he sent them and wanted it to be attached to these minutes. It is really important because we 172 
spent a lot of time with our teachers’ association, the Board had long a discussion, we as an administration team had 173 
a long discussion really listening to Lyndeborough, Wilton and teachers and our administrators really trying to create 174 
a solution that would work for Wilton and the needs they had. He was hopeful they would accept using FRES. He 175 
thought it was a great solution and great compromise; it is over 4,000 square feet in the gymnasium, it is handicap 176 
accessible, has 60-70 parking spaces that are marked plus the front, and we would move all of our teachers out of 177 
FRES to WLC for a PD day so that all of the spaces would be available. We listened to no remote and canceled that, 178 
we would rework the district calendar, which is challenging, the kids would make up the day in March, swapping 179 
that PD day for November 5 but at the end of the day, they must have felt it was a better decision for the community 180 
to have it at the Town Hall. Personally he was disappointed because he thought it was really good work on our part. 181 
We will work earlier next time in 2028 to get it into the calendar. It was noted if nothing else that it was a good drill 182 
on how to prepare for it, we may think about them wanting to do other elections here like every 2 years, maybe they 183 
will consider it and hope they reach out to us as soon as possible so that we can plan. She hopes there are no hard 184 
feelings over this. The Superintendent gave a shout-out to the Wilton Selectman who were adamant in making sure 185 
we had a positive relationship with Wilton and a positive relationship with Lyndeborough as a trifecta. A comment 186 
was made by one of the Selectman that we are in this together to educate our students and can’t do it alone and really 187 
need to move in the same direction. Obviously, we would have some roadblocks but at the end of the day, they really 188 
stressed the partnership with the communities and he really appreciated that, he thinks all 3 of them agreed, Mr. 189 
Williams, Mr. Garcia and Mr. Schultz, thank you for those comments. 190 
 191 

VII. POLICIES 192 
a. 1st Read 193 

i. JLDBB-Suicide Prevention and Response 194 
Ms. Lavallee reported there were changes due to last year’s legislation. The changes were small and we brought it 195 
right to the Board, the changes are in red. It was revised to reflect HB 1109; it changed the phone number 196 
requirements and the name of the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline and then added the eating disorders helpline. 197 
Administration had reached out to her, our student id’s had already been ordered but have put up posters around the 198 
school with the information and any id’s ordered moving forward will have all the information on the back of it. She 199 
asked for any questions or comments, none heard. The policy will come back for a 2nd read and adoption at the next 200 
meeting.  201 
 202 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 203 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 204 

A MOTION was made by Ms. Foss and SECONDED by Ms. Lavallee to approve the minutes of September 10, 2024 205 
as written. 206 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 207 
 208 

IX. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 209 
a. Appointment-Zachary Girouard-Computer Science-WLC 210 

Superintendent reviewed the nomination. Excitement was voiced for the fact that we have a full teaching staff, which 211 
has not been accomplished in several years.  212 
 213 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Allen and SECONDED by Ms. Foss to appoint Zachary Girouard as the Computer 214 
Science Teacher at WLC, Bachelors, Step 1, salary of $46,000. 215 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 216 
 217 

X. PUBLIC COMMENTS 218 
The public comment section of the agenda was read. Superintendent called out all the phone numbers and names 219 

joined in the meeting asking if they wanted to comment. There was no public comment.  220 

 221 
XI. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 222 

Mr. Allen welcomed Mr. Girouard, we have an incredible team in place, and he is hearing nothing but positives 223 
things from staff, parents, and students. Good job to Ms. LaPlante and the administration team, you knocked it out of 224 
the park with your accounting and staying on top of things. You don’t always have the answer he wants but you have 225 



 

  

the answer, we can’t ask for anything more. You do a great job balancing the budget and getting all the projects that 226 
need to be done around here done. Mr. Buroker and the IT department, what a smooth start to the year, you made it 227 
seamless for everyone. When you look at the size and scope of what we transition from over the course of a summer, 228 
it is unheard of. He understands it may not be seamless on the back end but the fact that you can protect everyone in 229 
the district from seeing some the issues, kudos, to a really good team in place. Thank you. 230 
 231 
Mr. Zavgren echoes Mr. Allen and you all are doing a great job, he appreciates it. 232 
 233 
Ms. Anzalone echoed what Mr. Allen said, great job to the start of the year for everyone. Thanked the staff for all the 234 
hard work they are doing. She spoke of the food service debt and if there is anything we can do to help with finding 235 
creative ways to help with it, she is sure it is mostly because people can’t afford it, let’s see if there is any way to 236 
help or to use unspent funds. 237 
 238 
Mr. Lavoie spoke that the busses continue to be a problem for sporting events, soccer in particular from what he 239 
reads from Ms. Brewster, Athletic Director. He knows 100% it is not the districts fault but it is another peg against 240 
this company and contract, the bus company is hindering us. It needs to be noted that this is still a problem.  241 
 242 
Ms. Lavallee commented if anyone wants to become a bus driver, they are hiring as all companies pretty much 243 
across the state. If you have a flexible schedule, you are available in the morning, afternoon, or evening for sporting 244 
events contact Butler Bus Company. 245 
 246 
Ms. Cloutier-Cabral commented that she missed hearing from Ms. Golding this evening and looks forward to hearing 247 
from her at the next meeting.  She commented on how fast the meeting went tonight. She commented on how 248 
exciting it is that we have a computer science teacher and hearing Mr. Buroker’s report turning over tickets and 249 
hearing about the intern. She is sure the intern program will grow.  Ms. LaPlante you do a great job as always, $70 250 
left over from ESSER III. It has to be a record she can’t imagine anyone else could do that. She voiced appreciation 251 
for Ms. Nantel and Ms. Jones who is right there supporting her.  252 
 253 
Ms. Alley thanked those in charge of IEP’s and working with children who have them. She thought they really 254 
analyze what is needed and for HS students having extra work, those 2 periods have really helped them. She 255 
appreciates the school looking at that and seeing those needs. She thanked the Select Board, she thought the process 256 
that the Superintendent spoke of that the Board went through and the Superintendent went through was really good to 257 
come up with a solution, as a new school board member it was great to see that. She is excited about the new 258 
computer science teacher and for our school to be his first school. 259 
 260 

XII. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (C) 261 
i. Student Matter 262 

  This was removed from the agenda.  263 
 264 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 265 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lavallee and SECONDED by Mr. Allen to adjourn the Board meeting at 7:16pm. 266 
Voting: all aye, motion carried. 267 
 268 
Respectfully submitted, 269 
Kristina Fowler 270 
 271 



FYI: This is the email sent on September 12, 2024 to Jane Farrell Town Clerk and copy to Bill Keefe 

Moderator. The email reflects follow up from the previous school board meeting held on September 10, 

2024 regarding November 5th elections. 

 

Good Morning Jane, 

I am writing to follow up on our conversation from yesterday.  As I noted, the school board (SB) talked at 

length about the town of Wilton's request to use the WLC gymnasium for the November 5th 

election.  The SB  was supportive of our proposal to use the WLC cafe, but they did not support our 

request to have WLC students learn remote on November 5th.  I also explained that you view the WLC 

cafe as not meeting your expectations for an election venue. 

Consequently, we are working on altering our school calendar to ensure that we can support Wilton's 

needs on November 5th while also aligning with the expectations of both Lyndeborough and Wilton SB 

members and community.   

Below is a plan that we believe will address all of the concerns discussed: 

1.  We will change our school calendar so that students will not have November 5th as a school day and 

only staff will be on school property 

2. We are making the FRES gymnasium available for you to use, along with an additional classroom 

space as requested. This would provide ample space, multiple egress points, ample parking (as we 

would move all of our FRES staff to WLC), bathroom access, and handicap accessibility. 

3.  The WLC gymnasium would also be available if you prefer, however, the town of Wilton would need 

to provide a cover on the gym floor that would protect the floor finish from potential damage. 

4.  In the use of either building, any cost incurred such as custodial services, will need to be paid by the 

town of Wilton. 

5.  Additionally, we would make the space available to you on Monday, November 4th, starting at 3:00 

pm, after all students are fully dismissed. 

Last, as I mentioned yesterday, we are open to a meeting to discuss this further if necessary.  Our SB has 

directed me to report back to them at our September 24th meeting.  Please reach out to me if I can 

clarify and/or answer any questions. 

Thank you, 

Peter  



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District provides a safe and educational environment that promotes student exploration, critical 
thinking and responsible citizenship. 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO: Tammy Smith 
FROM: Peter Weaver 
DATE: October 8, 2024 
RE: Resignation 
 
 
In accordance with Policy GCQC: 
 
“A resignation by a licensed employee who is under contract to the school should be submitted to 
the Superintendent. Said resignation of a licensed employee may take effect on a date approved by 
the Superintendent acting as agent of the School Board.  
 
I am in receipt of your email dated September 27, 2024 that you intend to resign your position as 
Food Service Worker effective October 11, 2024. 

 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 

              Peter Weaver                                                     Ned Pratt                                                        Kristie LaPlante                   
Superintendent of Schools                           Director of Student Support Services                   Business Administrator           


	WLC School Board Agenda 10.8.24
	WLC Student School Board Report
	WLC Principal School Board Report 10.8.24
	WLC NEASC 9.25.24
	FRES-LCS October '24 Board Report
	CC Report 10.8.24
	Fall '24 Data Presentation (1)
	WLCTA Board Report
	Final Timeline FY 2025-2026 updated 9.30.24
	NHSBA Proposed Resolutions 2024
	JLDBB Suicide Prevention and Response 2nd read 10.8.24
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 9.24.24 w. email attachment
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 9.24.24
	Email sent 9.12.24 to town clerk-moderator

	Resignation T Smith Food Services

